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The New Hampshire Division 
of Historical Resources’ State 

Conservation and Rescue Archaeology 
Program (SCRAP) is offering a two-week 
archaeological field school in Historical 
Archaeology at Pisgah State Park.  
The program will be in coordination 
with Antioch University and under 
the direction of DHR Historical 
Archaeologists Edna Feighner and 
Tanya Kress.  

This will be the first of many New 
Hampshire State Parks surveys that 
the DHR will conduct in partnership 
with other State agencies and 
organizations.  

Field school dates are July 28-August 
1, 2008, and August 4-8, 2008.  Go to 
http://www.nh.gov/nhdhr/histarch.
htm for the brochure and registration 
information.  

The 2008 SCRAP field school in 
prehistory will explore new areas of 
known Paleoindian sites and will survey 

Meet Mary Kate Ryan, 
Our New State Survey 
Coordinator

NEWS from the NH Division of Historical Resources
SCRAP Summer  
Field Schools

Welcome Mae Williams,  
Our New Program 
Assistant 

Mary Kate Ryan is the Division of 
Historical Resources’ new State 

Survey Coordinator.  For the past five 
years, she was the architectural historian 
for the State Historical Society of 
North Dakota where she managed the 
National Register of Historic Places 
program.  Before then, she worked for 
the Oregon State Historic Preservation 
Office in the National Register and 
Federal Tax Incentives programs.  

At the DHR, Mary Kate will manage 
the statewide Survey and Inventory 
Program, the NH State Register of 
Historic Places, the NH Historic 
Property Documentation Program, the 
NH Barn Survey, and the state highway 
historical markers program.  Mary Kate 
has an MA in architectural history from 
the University of Oregon in Eugene 
and a BA in art history and English 
literature from Agnes Scott College in 
Decatur, Georgia.  She is excited to be 
in New England, which has an older 
built history than any place she has 
worked before.

Mae H. Williams is the new 
Program Assistant for the 

Division of Historical Resources.  She 
has recently been working with several 
local historical societies to digitize 
their collections and create searchable 
database systems.  She has also helped 
with web site development at historical 
societies, making the information that 
they have available to a wider audience.  
In addition, Mae has worked as an 
office assistant for the NH Preservation 
Alliance, as Program Assistant at the 

Mill ruins (DHR file photograph)
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Christine Fonda Rankie, the DHR 
National Register, Tax Incentives, 

& Covenants Coordinator, retired in 
March 2008 after 31 years with the state 
historic preservation program.  

Well-wishers from all across the state 
joined Commissioner Van McLeod and 
the DHR staff at a reception in the State 
Library, celebrating Christine’s service 
to the people and historical resources of 
New Hampshire. 
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State Historical  
Resources Council
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Mary Rose Boswell, Laconia
Gail Nessell Colglazier, Londonderry
Robert Macieski, New Boston
Duffy Monahon, Peterborough
Carl W. Schmidt, Orford
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David Watters, Dover
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Department of  
Cultural Resources

Van McLeod 
Commissioner
The DHR is a state service agency, supported 
by the State of New Hampshire, by the federal 
Historic Preservation Fund (through a matching 
grant administered by the National Park Service 
of the U.S. Department of the Interior), and by 
donated funds and services.  In addition to its 
state functions, the DHR is also responsible for 
administering the federal preservation program 
in New Hampshire.  

NH Division of 
Historical Resources 
http://www.nh.gov/nhdhr

AU REVOIR TO 
CHRISTINE FONDA 
RANKIE

Registration is now open for summer 
courses offered in the Preservation 

Studies Certificate Program at 
Plymouth State University.  Beginning 
July 1, State Historic Preservation 
Officer Elizabeth Muzzey will teach 
Preservation Planning and Management 
at Plymouth’s classroom in Concord 
at 2 Pillsbury Street.  Also in Concord, 
UNH scholar Fabienne Lord-Fonseca  
will teach The Rural Cultural Landscape:  
Architecture and Landscape, June 28- 
August 23.  Both are core courses in 
the four-course preservation certificate 
program.  

Maggie Stier, Shared Field Service 
Representative for the New Hampshire 
Preservation Alliance and the National 
Trust for Historic Preservation, will 
also be teaching in Concord, Preserving 
Community Landmarks, an intensive 
week-long course, from July 21-25.  

Rounding out the offerings are 
Heritage Studies Foundations, in 
Plymouth, June 30-July 18, and an 
online course, New Hampshire and New 
England Historic Sites, July 1-August 
8.  Plymouth professor Marcia Schmidt 
Blaine will teach both courses.  

Courses may be taken for graduate 
credit and on an audit basis.  More 
information about the certificate 
program can be found at: http://www.
plymouth.edu/graduate/heritage/
historic_preservation.html.  Enrollment 
and course registration forms are online 
at http://www.plymouth.edu/graduate/
forms.html.

Sign Up Now for 
Preservation Courses 
in Concord

Christine’s celebration at the New Hampshire State Library 
Photograph by Michael York

Christine and Van McLeod 
Photograph by Peter Michaud

http://www.mooseplate.com

got moose?
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The New Hampshire State Register of 
Historic Places continues to grow in 

popularity across the state.  Listing  provides 
public recognition that a historic property 
is an important resource in a community.  
Other benefits include a complimentary 
one-year membership to the New Hampshire 

Preservation Alliance, special consideration 
in the application of some access, building 
and safety codes, and qualification for many 
types of grant programs for preservation 
projects (as funding is available).  

For more information on the State 
Register program and the process for listing a 
property, please visit our web site at http://
www.nh.gov/nhdhr/barnstatereg.html or 
contact the Division of Historical Resources 
at 603-371-3483.  

The following properties have recently 
been listed in the New Hampshire State 
Register.  Photographs are from the State 
Register files.  

Head Chapel and Cemetery, 
Hooksett.  Originally an 1839 school, 
the Head Chapel was remodeled in 1922 
to serve as a chapel for the cemetery, 
which has been in use since 1800.  The 
chapel was a model school, being not 
only one of the most substantial schools 
in the area and representative of local 
brick manufacturing, but also one of the 
most intact one-room schoolhouses left 
in the region.  

Sawyer Tavern, Keene.  The Sawyer 
Tavern served West Keene as a public 
house from 1806 to 1843, and again 
from 1922 to about 1950.  As it stands 
today, it is a well-preserved example of an 
early 19th century inn, and an important 
reminder of the architecture and lifestyle 
of early 19th century New England.  

Indian Stream Schoolhouse, 
District 1, Pittsburg.  Constructed in 
1897, this one-room schoolhouse stands 
as an intact and well-preserved example 
of public architecture as applied in an 
northern rural setting.  Local records 
and this solidly-built structure testify 
to the importance of education in this 
small community.  

Stone Memorial Building, Weare.  
Designed by New Hampshire architect 
William Butterfield in 1896, the Stone 
Memorial building is a significant 
example of Neo-Classical style in 
a village setting.  The building was 
constructed with money donated by 
Joseph Stone in honor of his father, 
Phineas J. Stone, and would “provide 
suitable room for a public town 
library, and a room for … memorials 
for the soldiers in the late ‘War of the 
Rebellion,’ so called between the North 
and the South” as well as providing 
town office space.  

The Division of Historical Resources is 
pleased to announce two new changes 

to the State Historical Resources Council.  

Member Nancy Dutton of 
Wilmot was elected Council chair 
in December, succeeding long-time 
member and chair Jason Hoch of 
Plaistow.  Many readers will remember 
Nancy in her former roles as State 
Historic Preservation Officer, Director 
of the DHR and State Curator.  We 
are fortunate to have her wisdom 
and experience back in state 
government.  In her retirement, Nancy 
is also researching the history of Lake 
Sunapee and its surrounding towns.  

Jeff Woodburn of Dalton joined 
the Council in December.  Jeff 
worked for many years in real estate 
throughout New Hampshire, focusing 
on the special needs and opportunities 
of historical properties.  He now 
teaches high school history and civics 
and owns a family restaurant in 
Whitefield.  

The State Historical Resources 
Council reviews many of the programs 
and activities of the Division of 
Historical Resources.  Every quarter, 
the Council lists properties to the New 
Hampshire State Register of Historic 
Places and forwards its approval of 
nominations to the National Register 
of Historic Places to the National Park 
Service.

Elizabeth H. Muzzey 
DHR Director / NH SHPO

State Historical  
Resources Council News

New Listings for the 
New Hampshire

State Register of 
Historic Places

(continued on page four)
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This newsletter has been financed in part with a federal ‘Historic Preservation Fund’ matching grant from the National Park Service of the United States Department of the Interior, to the New Hampshire 
Division of Historical Resources/State Historic Preservation Office.  Part of the cost of this newsletter has been paid by the DHR’s annual federal program grant.  However, its contents and opinions do 
not necessarily reflect the views or policies of the Department of the Interior.  Regulations of the US Department of the Interior strictly prohibit unlawful discrimination in departmental federally assisted 
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marital status, physical or mental disability or national origin.  Any person who believes that he or she has been discriminated against in any program, activity, or facility operated by a recipient of federal 
assistance should write to:  Director, Office of Equal Opportunity, National Park Service, 1849 C Street, NW, Washington D.C. 20240.  

State of New Hampshire • Department of Cultural Resources • Division of Historical Resources 
19 Pillsbury Street, Concord, New Hampshire 03301-3570 

603-271-3483 • FAX 603-271-3433 • Voice/TTY Relay Access 1-800-735-2964 • preservation@dcr.nh.gov

New Listings for the New Hampshire 
State Register of Historic Places
(continued from page three)

SCRAP Summer Field Schools
(continued from page one)
and record newly discovered sites in 
Jefferson and Randolph. Preliminary 
finds strongly suggest the presence of a 
quarry and associated workshop in close 
context with other Paleoindian sites.  

The field school is co-sponsored 
by the DHR, through the State 
Conservation and Rescue Archaeology 
Program (SCRAP), and Plymouth 
State University. Dr. Richard Boisvert, 
NH State Archaeologist, will direct all 
fieldwork and instruction. Field school 
dates are June 23-July 18, 2008.  The 
brochure and registration information 
are at http://www.nh.gov/nhdhr/
documents/fsFlyer2008.pdf.

The Oyster River Environs 
Archaeology Project (OREAP) four-
week field school, under the direction 
of Peter Morrison, Pam Crane and 
Craig Brown will be conducted at the 
site of the Field-Bickford Garrison, 
located on Durham Point at the 
mouth of the Oyster River on Little 
Bay in Durham.  It will continue work 
begun on the garrison site in the 2007 
SCRAP field school, to define the limits 
of the structure, identify associated 
outbuildings and related ferry facilities, 
and establish a baseline of information 
for a broader investigation of this and 
related Oyster River Plantation sites.  

Field school dates are June 16-July 
11, 2008.  Registration information is 
available at http://www.oreap.org.

Arah W. Prescott Library, 
Hooksett.  Prominent citizen Arah W. 
Prescott donated the funds to build 
the town library in 1909, and designed 
the building himself.  Completed in 
1910, the building and the institution 
it houses have contributed significantly 
to the education of the citizens of 
Hooksett.  

Allenstown Public Library, 
Allenstown.  Erected circa 1934-35 by 
Works Progress Administration workers, 
this Colonial Revival structure is the 
only building in Allenstown constructed 
expressly as a library.  The design by 
Harold, Homes, Owen, Inc. has well 
served the community for more than 70 
years.  

Marelli’s Market, Hampton.  First 
constructed circa 1841 on Exeter Road, 
this market was moved to its current 
location in 1900 when the commercial 
center of Hampton shifted to what 

is now Route 1.  In 1914, Luigi and 
Celestina Marelli established a market 
selling primarily produce and candies.  
Over the years, Marelli’s has been a 
purveyor of fine foods, produce, and 
candies, an institution in the business 
district and a rare survivor of the 
small village markets that were once so 
plentiful.  It is the longest continually 
operating business in Hampton Center.  

Mary Kate Ryan 
State Survey Coordinator

NH Department of Agriculture, and 
as Curatorial Assistant at Canterbury 
Shaker Village.  

Mae has a BA in Medieval Studies 
in Art History from Bard College in 
Annandale-on-Hudson, NY.  She is 
looking forward to combining her 
interests in history, architecture, 
archaeology, and preservation at the 
DHR.  

Welcome Mae Williams,  
Our New Program Assistant 
(continued from page one)

Support your local historical  
society, heritage commission,  

and historic district commission!


